
1

MEETING: HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING 
GROUP

DATE: Tuesday 20th September, 2016

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: Magdalen House

Members & Associations

South Sefton Hackney Carriage Drivers Association
Richard Jarman

North West Taxi Trade
Chris Snellgrove

North West Taxi Association
(Vacant)

North Sefton Hackney Carriage Drivers Association
Tony Crabtree

Southport Station Hackney Carriage Association
John Murrison
Barry Howard

Berry Street Garage
Joe Johnson

Sefton Fleet Association
Thomas Robinson

Aintree Garages
Mike Denning

Delta Merseyside Ltd
Paul McLaughlin
Gary Beesley

Sefton Private Hire Fleet Operators Association
Mark Sanders

Uber
Neil McGonigle

Ability Network
Paula Hodson

Public Document Pack



2

Officers
Mark Toohey (Chair), Principal Trading Standards Officer
Mike Foulkes, Senior Taxi Licensing Officer

MEETING OFFICER: Liz Risley
Email: liz.risley@sefton.gov.uk



3

This page is intentionally left blank.



4

A G E N D A

Item 
No.
 

 1.  Apologies for Absence

 2.  Minutes (Pages 9 - 
14)

Minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2016
 

 3.  Matters Arising from the Minutes

 4.  L & R Reports (Pages 15 - 
28)

The full versions of the reports (including 
attachments) can be found here:

http://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListD
ocuments.aspx?CId=124&MId=8706&Ver=4

 
 5.  Enforcement

Further information to be provided at the 
meeting.
 

 6.  Update from Merseyside Officers Meeting
Chair to provide update.
 

 7.  Joint Authorisations
Chair to provide update on proposed new joint 
authorisations across Merseyside.
 

 8.  Knowledge Test
Standing item for discussion.

The current pass rate for Bootle is 35% and 
41% for Southport.
 

 9.  Testing Station review
Chair to provide update.
 

 10.  Trade Representatives
Item raised by Richard Jarman.

http://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=124&MId=8706&Ver=4
http://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=124&MId=8706&Ver=4


5

If a rep is ill, retires, or is otherwise unavailable 
then other reps in the Borough should be 
consulted. No Southport rep was on record 
recently, which resulted in no consultation on 
an issue of import, South Sefton reps could 
have stood in.
 

 11.  Lost Property (Pages 29 - 
30)

Item raised by Paul McLaughlin.

 
 12.  Licence Numbers & Implications (Pages 31 - 

34)
Item raised by Paul McLaughlin.
 

 13.  Taxi Quality Partnership (Pages 35 - 
52)

The latest Taxi Quality Partnership meeting 
took place on 7th September.

The draft charter and forward plan are attached 
for comment.

Further item raised by Richard Jarman.

 “To consider and support the TQP 
reports on the future of the trades 
regionally

The forward plan is attached; this has been 
considered by the TQP but not in detail and is 
the basis on which Merseytravel will proceed in 
its remit by the City Region to report on 
Regional Transport.

 To consider the draft Charter put 
forward by the TQP:

This is a draft; for a regulator at the TQP to say 
the Charter should be an enforceable bye – 
law, or condition, flies in the face of common 
sense a Charter is a trade wide agreement over 
and above compulsion.

Regulators must realise that agreement and 
policy does not automatically equate with 
compulsion or ‘control’.”
 



6

 14.  Request to adopt TfL proposals (Pages 53 - 
54)

Item raised by Richard Jarman.

 
 15.  Use of the word 'Taxi' (Pages 55 - 

56)
Item raised by Richard Jarman.

To consider the recent taxi trade booklet 
from HMG (2016) and to adopt its policy in 
relation to nomenclature:

Page 4: Thus, for the purposes of this 
paper, and in line with the Law 
Commission’s recommendation, the term 
‘taxi’ is used to refer to what are currently 
defined in legislation as ‘hackney carriages’.

Henceforth “taxi” is a Hackney Carriage, PHVs 
should cease use of the term.”
 

 16.  Sub contracting of private hire bookings
Item raised by Richard Jarman.

“To require a report on the mechanics and 
enforcement of agency work and agency 
bookings by PHV operators. Bookings must be 
contracted to the operator first contacted before 
any agency arrangement is in place. 
Arrangements by ‘apps’ are not included in this 
requirement according to SMBC”
 

 17.  Labour Party Conference (Pages 57 - 
58)

Message from Liverpool Licensing.
 

 18.  Date of next meeting *
TBC
 

 19.  Any Other Business
In accordance with Minute No. 37 (iii) of the 
meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee of 24 February 2003, other business 
may only be considered if agreed by the Chair 
and a majority of the trade and if it is of an 



7

urgent nature. i.e. requires consideration prior 
to the next scheduled meeting of the Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Joint Trade Working 
Group.
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1

HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP

MEETING HELD AT MAGDALEN HOUSE, 30 TRINITY ROAD, BOOTLE 
L20 3NJ

ON TUESDAY 21ST JUNE, 2016

Members & Associations

South Sefton Hackney Carriage Drivers Association
Richard Jarman

Berry Street Garage
Joe Johnson

Brookfield Drive Garage
Mike Denning

Sefton Fleet Association
Thomas Robinson

Uber
Neil McGonigle

Officers
Mark Toohey (Chair), Principal Trading Standards Officer
Mike Foulkes, Senior Taxi Licensing Officer

MEETING OFFICER: Liz Risley
Email: liz.risley@sefton.gov

131. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Chris Snelgrove - South Sefton Hackney Carriage Drivers Association
Paul McLaughlin – Delta
Mark Sanders – Delta Garages
Terry Wood – Environmental Health and Licensing Manager

132. MINUTES 

Minutes of last meeting discussed and were agreed as a true record.

133. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

It was agreed that the following was still on-going:

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
TUESDAY 21ST JUNE, 2016

2

 One Stop Shop costing
 Signage and Phone numbers used by Operators.

134. FEEDBACK FROM NEW L & R COMMITTEE 

MT – Went over the points that were discussed at the meeting. He said 
that because it was a new committee, there was not much to feedback on.  

MT – Went through the number of vehicles inspected and faults reported.

JJ - Mentioned the stats on appointments at the One Stop Shop and asked 
that because the number of appointments booked and those that were 
actually kept (approx. 50% not attending), could the drop-in times be 
altered to 9am-4pm?

MT – To make enquiries with the One Stop Shop.

RJ – Mentioned the DBS annual check and do we need to publicise this 
service?

MT – Stated he has been liaising with the One Stop Shop and the service 
has been given the all clear in May 2016.

MT – Referred to the “drop in” new driver applicants figures and said he 
would keep an eye on them.

RJ – Said he was asked to raise the question regarding reliability of 
vehicles especially E7 and MPV’s.

MT – Said he has been asked about this and would take this into 
consideration when making amendments to the Testing Stations Review.

135. KNOWLEDGE TEST 

MT – Stated that the number of new applicants taking the knowledge test 
has dropped dramatically since the new test was introduced.

MT – Has not received any suggestions for improvements on the current 
Knowledge Test from other members of the Group.  

MT –Mentioned L&R Committee wants to retain the Knowledge Test. 

JJ – Gave out a copy of a proposed new test* for group consideration.  He 
also stated that if we need to have a knowledge test it should be relevant 
to the job.  It should not be just a route finding test.  It should have places 
of interest and JJ went through some of the examples.  He also gave 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
TUESDAY 21ST JUNE, 2016

3

examples of questions relating to conditions of license, currency and made 
a suggestion that new applicants should be able to understand and follow 
an A-Z. 

*NB – the proposed test submitted by Joe Johnson is attached to the end 
of these minutes.

RJ – Stated that enough time has been spent on the knowledge test and 
that current test has been agreed and we should only be discussing that 
test and not others.

MD – Disagreed and said that the reason we attend these meetings is so 
that we can, and should, be able to discuss all aspects of the Knowledge 
Test and be able to make amendments and alterations as and when 
necessary. So we can compete with other neighbouring Authorities.

MT – Said he will send out copies of JJ test to all attendees and will also 
send a copy of the new current knowledge test to all.

JJ – Also stated that if we don’t move with the times and compete with 
other Authorities we won’t be having these meeting in 12 months’ time.  As 
we won’t have any new applicants coming through.

NG – stated that we should have a knowledge test that is a relevant 
assessment for the job that they do.  A knowledge Test should be “fit for 
purpose”.

136. TESTING STATIONS 

MT – Stated he does not have much to report on regarding an update on 
the Testing Stations Review. He went through the figures on Agenda Item 
6 and stated that he has meetings and in the background things were 
moving forward.

JJ – Wants all Testing Stations to tighten up on practices.  To all have the 
same standards.  All Stations should be able to follow the same 
guidelines.  He stated that the current number of Testing Stations is too 
big and should be reduced to a more manageable number.  So that 
enforcement can ensure that they are all following the correct procedures 
and guidelines.

MT – Said the whole purpose for the Testing Station Review was that all 
Stations follow the same guidelines and procedures.  To have 
manageable, set rules to follow for all testers and enforcement officers.  
So that everyone knows where they stand.

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
TUESDAY 21ST JUNE, 2016

4

MT – To give a full report on the Testing Stations Review.  To make a draft 
report and set costings.

MD – Proposed an awaiting list for new Testing Station applicants wanting 
to apply as a Testing Station.

137. TRO'S 

RJ – Stated he wants appropriate notice in advance for any TRO following 
the recent Ormskirk Road closure to which no consultation took place.

MT – to find out who is responsible now for implementing them.

138. CROSS BORDER ENFORCEMENT 

RJ – Raised concerns over unauthorised officers issuing 
tickets/warnings/cautions etc. to licensed Sefton Drivers from other 
neighbouring Authorities.

MT – Advised that Sefton Licensed Drivers should ask other Enforcement 
Authorities if they are Authorised before accepting any warning 
notifications.

JJ – Added that an Enforcement Officer cannot stop a vehicle without a 
Police Officer present.

RJ – Stated for the record that Liverpool Authority issue summons to 
Drivers too late to raise objections.  The deadline has already passed.

JJ – Raised concerns about the possible cost implication of Cross Border 
Enforcement and what impact it may have on the current service.  Would it 
be extra work for the current Enforcement Team?

MF – To look into officer authorisation for other Authorities.

JJ – Mentioned over-ranking on the strand.

RJ – Wants it enforcing.

MT – To pass on comments to Parking Services.

139. PRIVATE HIRE BOOKINGS 

RJ – Raised concerns over telephone bookings from PHV.  He wants to 
ensure that the correct procedures are adhered to and all bookings are 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
TUESDAY 21ST JUNE, 2016

5

accountable for.  Especially those who are being passed onto a non-
Sefton licensed vehicles.  Is the system complying with conditions of 
service or not?

MT – Stated that enforcement could request to look at journey records to 
ensure this.

NG – Stated this does not refer to Uber as they use “Tap the App” system 
which complies with conditions and legislation.

140. LEASED VEHICLES 

JJ – Raised concerns over the growing number of Lease Hire vehicles 
being used as PHV.  He wants to ensure that the lease companies are 
fully aware that their vehicles are being used Taxi purposes.  

JJ - Asked what, if any, is the Council doing regarding checking log books 
etc. with known lease vehicles?

MT – Said he will ask One Stop Shop for details and feedback, especially 
for insurance purposes.

RJ – Stated that they must provide separate evidence such as copy of the 
lease agreement and make sure paperwork is right.

MT – Said he will send out information on Hire Agreements and PCN’s for 
others to look at.

141. DROP OFF FACILITY 

JJ – Has raised the question as to why the trade is paying for the drop off 
facility if it a permanent fixture?  Is permanent?  Is there a separate charge 
for this service?  Is it on the accounts as part of the One Stop Shop 
contract/service?  Or are we still being billed for it separately?  Where is 
the money going?

MT – To look into costing and seek advice from Finance Department.

142. TAXI QUALITY PARTNERSHIP 

RJ – Has asked members to get involved with the Taxi Quality Partnership 
meetings. The group is seeking the trades’ opinions regarding future plans 
for a Combined Authority.  Next meeting to be held on the 7th September 
2016.  

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
TUESDAY 21ST JUNE, 2016

6

143. DATE OF NEXT MEETING * 

TBC

144. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

Page 14

Agenda Item 2



Report to: Licensing & Regulatory Committee  Date of Meeting: 26 September 
2016

  
Subject: Implications of the recent review into the South Ribble Taxi Licensing 

Service.

Report of: Head of Regulation & Compliance Wards Affected: All

Is this a Key Decision? No Is it included in the Forward 
Plan? No

Exempt/Confidential No 

Purpose/Summary

To report to members the results of a recent investigation of the Taxi and Private Hire 
Licensing Service in South Ribble Borough Council by the Lancashire Safeguarding 
Children Board and assess any implications for Sefton in light of their recommendations.

Recommendation(s)

That Licensing and Regulatory Committee: 

i) Notes this report; and

ii) Approves the suggestions for improvements to the service contained in the report.

How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives?

Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact

Neutral 
Impact

Negative 
Impact

1 Creating a Learning Community 

2 Jobs and Prosperity 

3 Environmental Sustainability 

4 Health and Well-Being 

5 Children and Young People 

6 Creating Safe Communities 

7 Creating Inclusive Communities 

8 Improving the Quality of Council Services 
and Strengthening Local Democracy



Reasons for the Recommendation:

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



In order that the Licensing & Regulatory Committee can be kept up to date with issues 
concerning the Taxi Licensing Service and the safeguards in place to combat child 
sexual exploitation.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

The cost of the service is wholly recovered from the ring fenced Taxi Licensing 
Trade Account, (Revenue Budget BD12). 

(B) Capital Costs

None.

Implications:

The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below:

Legal                                     

Finance                                 
 

Human Resources               None

Equality
1. No Equality Implication

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains

Impact on Service Delivery:

Improved standards and greater customer focus.

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

The Head of Corporate Resources has been consulted and notes the report indicates no 
direct financial implications for the Council.  The cost of the service is wholly recovered 
from the ring fenced Taxi Licensing Trade Account. (FD 4306/16).

The Head of Regulation & Compliance Services has been consulted and has no 
comments on the report. (LD 3589/16)

Are there any other options available for consideration?



Page 16

Agenda Item 4



None.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee Meeting.

Contact Officer: Mark Toohey
Tel: 0151 934 2274
Email: mark.toohey@sefton.gov.uk

Background Papers:

None

1. Background

1.1 South Ribble Borough Council recently conducted an investigation into its taxi 
licensing functions which highlighted several concerns (see paragraph 3.3).

1.2 Due to the serious nature of the risks posed by the findings following the 
investigation into the taxi licensing function, Sefton has audited its own systems 
and reviewed our taxi licensing service in light of the findings, risks and 
recommendations in the Wilkin Chapman report (attached as annex 1).

2 Systems in Sefton

2.1 Sefton currently licence around 2,600 hackney carriage and private hire drivers. 

2.2 Licences are issued and renewed in the One Stop Shops.  Any adverse 
information concerning a  driver (or potential driver) is passed to the Taxi 
Licensing Unit who are responsible for ensuring that all new applicants and 
existing drivers may only hold a licence if they are deemed a ‘fit and proper’ 
person – there is no statutory definition of ‘fit and proper’.  

2.3 Sections 51 & 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
(LGMPA) state that a council should only issue a licence to a driver if they are 
satisfied that person is fit and proper.  Section 61 allows the council to suspend or 
revoke or refuse to renew any driver’s licence should that driver be convicted of 
any offence involving dishonesty, indecency or violence.  It also allows a licence 
to be suspended or revoked for offences under the LGMPA itself or for “any other 
reasonable cause”.

2.4 Apart from regular medicals, NVQ/VRQ training, topographical knowledge test 
and a current driving licence with full entitlement, all drivers must undergo a full 
enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) check on application and every 3 
years thereafter.

2.5 The ‘statement of policy and guidelines relating to the relevance of convictions 
and other criminal matters’ (commonly referred to as the convictions policy) lays 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4

mailto:mark.toohey@sefton.gov.uk


down specific disqualification criteria in relation to certain offences but the list is 
not exhaustive.  The purpose of the policy is to set out some criteria of what the 
council thinks constitutes a fit and proper person and it is the starting point when 
determining licensing decisions.  The policy is intended to minimise any threat to 
the public (including protection from dishonest persons) and the safeguarding of 
children and young persons.

2.5 In relation to sexual and indecency offences, any person on the sex offenders 
register will normally be refused a licence.  Similarly, any person who has 
convictions for sex offences against children and young persons will always be 
refused.  Offences for rape, indecent assault or similar offences will again 
normally result in the refusal of a licence.  The process is not limited just to 
convictions and includes allegations of a serious nature involving any relevant 
criminal matters.  

3. South Ribble Borough Council

3.1 South Ribble Borough Council has responsibility for issuing driver licences within 
its area.  The licensing functions are carried out by a General Licensing 
Committee (GLC) in conjunction with Council officers. Their test of the suitability of 
a person as to whether they were ‘fit and proper’ seemingly was to ask 
themselves the question “would allow a member of their family or other person for 
whom they care to get into a vehicle alone with the driver”.

3.2 In July and August 2015, some officers and some members expressed concern 
about decisions to renew the licences of certain drivers where there were potential 
incidents of Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE).  The Local Safeguarding Children 
Board (LCSB) has since indicated that its review identified one concern into 
potential grooming.

3.3 The Council’s Monitoring Officer conducted an investigation into;

a) Taxi licensing cases where CSE was considered; and
b) Data sharing between the Council and external bodies where CSE was alleged 

and
c) The recording of data onto the Council licensing IT system

3.4 The Monitoring Officer presented a written report to the Council’s Cabinet 
indicating that there had been failings in local investigatory procedures which 
might have affected the ability of the GLC to make proper decisions and 
information sharing and data recording was unsatisfactory.

3.5 A disciplinary investigation was launched in respect of licensing staff by Wilkin 
Chapman LLP Solicitors.  A full report by Wilkin Chapman was published on 17 
June 2016.

3.6 The report produced an implementation plan in result of its findings and 
associated risks.  Further to this, the Council’s Monitoring Officer suggested a 
number of recommendations.  It is the findings of the internal audit report against 
which Sefton has reviewed its current practices.

4. Findings, risks and recommendations
Page 18

Agenda Item 4



4.1 As a result of the investigation into systems in place in South Ribble, Sefton have 
carried out an examination of its working practices against the findings, risks and 
recommendations highlighted by the Wilkin Chapman report.

4.2 The table below is a summary of the higher risk issues identified in South Ribble 
that may be applicable to Sefton and the current position in Sefton.  The table also 
identifies actions that need to be taken in certain matters to ensure our 
procedures are the best they can be to assist in combatting child sexual 
exploitation.  Please note this does not include all items raised in the Wilkin 
Chapman report and minor or non-relevant issues have been excluded;

Risk identified by South 
Ribble

Sefton Current Position Action

1 The Council does not have a Taxi 
Licensing Policy

The latest handbook containing 
the relevant policies and 

procedures was approved by 
committee on 30 March 2015

N/A

2 Application forms do not record 
National Insurance numbers or a 

declaration regarding data handling 
on application forms

Application forms currently record 
National Insurance numbers and 
contain a privacy notice stating 
why the information is needed 

and how it will be handled or used

N/A

3 Detailed written procedures should 
be in place for Officers 

incorporating all aspects of the 
service

There are policies and procedures 
in place for the vast majority of 

aspects of the service

Review current 
policies and 

identify any gaps

4 Issues relating to significant 
backlogs in filing documentation. 
Unable to establish if documents 

have been received

No known backlogs of 
documentation. Documents are 
logged upon receipt in the OSS 
and attached to relevant licence 

application

N/A

5 There should be written procedures 
for Licensing officer roles and 

responsibilities

Clearly defined officer roles and 
responsibilities have been in 

place since June 2011

N/A

6 There should be a formal schedule 
of pro-active enforcement in place 

and actions recorded

Planned and unplanned 
inspections are routinely carried 
out and results recorded. Multi 

agency operations and test 
purchasing of unlicensed vehicles 

& drivers carried out.

N/A

7 Reporting to the GLC should take 
place on a bi-annual or annual 

basis.  The report should include an 
update of the work of the team, 

licenses issued and any 
enforcement action taken

The last annual performance 
report was consider on 20 June 

2016 and included data on 
applications, appeals, 

revocations, prosecutions and 
knowledge tests. Complaint data 

was not available

Complaint data 
to be included in 
future reports. 

Consideration of 
more frequent 

reporting?

8 Ensure all records relating to the 
licensing function are collated and 

properly filed as quickly as possible

Applicant details are immediately 
entered onto the Idox Uniform 

system at the application stage in 
the OSS – this includes any 

accompanying documents.  All 
enforcement data is entered onto 
Civica Authority which is routinely 

monitored to ensure it is up to 
date

N/A

9 Identify any risks to the public from 
information held and capture those 

There are no known issues with 
missing records

N/A

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



risks on the council corporate risk 
register

10 Ensure licensing staff fully 
understand the primary purpose of 

the taxi licensing function

Discussions concerning the taxi 
licensing duties and 

responsibilities are regularly 
discussed in one to one and team 

meetings and liaison with the 
legal section

N/A

11 Ensure all members of the GLC 
understand the purpose of the taxi 
licensing function and it’s quasi-

judicial role

Decisions on licence applications 
are made by 3 officers who form 

part of a long standing panel 
which is chaired by an 

experienced ex police officer. 
Panel decisions are made using 
delegated powers.  The officers 

give witness testimony (if needed) 
for any court appeals

Officers to 
ensure that they 
are kept up to 

date with 
changes to 

legislation and 
decisions from 
appeal cases

12 Require all members of the GLC 
and officers to complete 

appropriate training on CSE as 
quickly as possible

Officers involved have received 
CSE awareness training and are 

in close contact with the 
safeguarding team

Officers to 
receive refresher 

training as 
required

13 A process be put in place 
specifically designed to trigger 
safeguarding actions for early 

positive interventions

All cases of CSE are 
automatically referred to the child 
safeguarding team who then form 
part of the decision making panel

Continue

14 Create a standard template for 
reports to ensure consistency of 
approach – to contain a section 

from legal services

Standard documentation is used 
for all licensing decisions with the 
officers’ decision and reasoning 

clearly recorded. Legal opinion is 
provided when deemed 

necessary

N/A

5 Suggestions for improvement

5.1 Having reviewed Sefton’s system in light of the findings from the South Ribble 
review, subject to Committee approval, Offices will take the actions outlined above 
to secure the necessary improvements.

5.2 Officers will review current policies to ensure they are up to date and cover all 
aspects of the licensing functions.  Officers will also receive CSE refresher training 
as required.

5.3 Future reports to Committee should include more detailed information about 
complaint data and consideration given to more frequent reporting.

5.4 Promote the increased use of the online DBS update service which will allow the 
Council to undertake instant checking of a licence holder’s certificate at any time.

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



Report to: Licensing & Regulatory Committee  Date of Meeting: 26 September 
2016

  
Subject: Summary of Taxi Licensing Enquiries and Complaints

Report of: Head of Regulation & Compliance Wards Affected: All

Is this a Key Decision? No Is it included in the Forward 
Plan? No

Exempt/Confidential No 

Purpose/Summary

To inform members of the types of enquiries and complaints handled by the Taxi 
Licensing Unit.

Recommendation(s)

That Licensing and Regulatory Committee: 

i) Notes this report; and

ii) Request further reports of this nature are brought to future committee meetings.

How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives?

Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact

Neutral 
Impact

Negative 
Impact

1 Creating a Learning Community 

2 Jobs and Prosperity 

3 Environmental Sustainability 

4 Health and Well-Being 

5 Children and Young People 

6 Creating Safe Communities 

7 Creating Inclusive Communities 

8 Improving the Quality of Council Services 
and Strengthening Local Democracy



Reasons for the Recommendation:

In order that the Licensing & Regulatory Committee can be kept up to date with issues 
concerning the Taxi Licensing Service

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

The cost of the service is wholly recovered from the ring fenced Taxi Licensing 
Trade Account, (Revenue Budget BD12). 

(B) Capital Costs

None.

Implications:

The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below:

Legal                                     

Finance                                 
 

Human Resources               None

Equality
1. No Equality Implication

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains

Impact on Service Delivery:

Improved standards and greater customer focus.

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

The Head of Corporate Resources has been consulted and notes the report indicates no 
direct financial implications for the Council.  The cost of the service is wholly recovered 
from the ring fenced Taxi Licensing Trade Account. (FD 3595/16)

The Head of Regulation and Compliance has been consulted and has no comments on 
the report. (LD 3595/16)

Are there any other options available for consideration?

None.



Page 22

Agenda Item 4



Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee Meeting.

Contact Officer: Mark Toohey
Tel: 0151 934 2274
Email: mark.toohey@sefton.gov.uk

Background Papers:

None

1. Background

1.1 During discussions at previous Licensing & Regulatory Committee meetings, 
members have requested information concerning complaints and enquiries 
handled by the Taxi Licensing Unit (TLU). Prior to April 2016, this data was not in 
a format that could easily be produced and reported on.

1.2 Due to changes within the complaint handling database, details of all enquiries 
received can now be more easily reported on and grouped into types of 
complaints/enquiries.  Annex 1 contains a table summarising all enquiries and 
complaints handled by the TLU from 1 April to 31 August 2016.

2 Types of enquiries & complaints

2.1 The types of complaints are separated into the following headings;

 Freedom of Information requests (recorded separately for easier scrutiny 
by the Information Commissioners Office)

 Vehicle accident reports (required to be reported by Council conditions)
 Official notification of conviction/caution (typically from the Police or another 

local authority)
 Allegation of conviction/caution (from any other source including 

anonymous or from a newspaper article)
 Public body enquiry (typically government departments making requests 

concerning drivers and vehicle owners)
 Guide dog refusal (without a driver exemption certificate)
 Overcharging
 Solicitor enquiry (often handling a road traffic accident case and enquiring 

about vehicle or driver details – information is provided for a fee following a 
data protection request)

 Age related vehicle check (older vehicles that have not previously been 
licensed by Sefton in the preceding 6 months are required to be examined 
for fitness by a Council officer)

 Lost property (often disputes about lost property that have not been handed 
into the Police come to the Council)

 Driver conduct or appearance (this covers a wide range of issues but 
offensive language or personal hygiene would be included)

Page 23

Agenda Item 4

mailto:mark.toohey@sefton.gov.uk


 Driving style (passengers unhappy with the way in which they were driven 
or complaints of road rage have been received and complaints of 
dangerous driving are referred to the Police)

 Unlicensed activity (could be plying for hire without the correct licence or 
just completely unlicensed)

 Document irregularity (non-production of a DBS certificate or insurance 
when requested)

 Request for advice
 Miscellaneous (something that doesn’t easily fit into the other categories) 

3 Examples of enquires & complaints

3.1 Vehicle Accidents. 18 vehicle accident reports have been received this year so 
far. The condition on reporting accidents states: 

“Full details of any accident involving injury or material damage (including the 
condition of the licensed vehicle) and an insurance policy (valid at the time of the 
accident), within 72 hours of the accident occurring” 

3.2 It may be necessary to examine the vehicle prior to it being allowed to be used as 
a licensed vehicle again dependent on the level of damage and information 
available.

3.3 Official notification of conviction or caution. The Common Law Police 
Disclosure guidance states the following:

“Common Law Police Disclosure (CLPD) ensures that where there is a public 
protection risk, the police will pass information to the employer or regulatory body 
to allow them to act swiftly to put in measures to mitigate any danger. CLPD 
replaces the Notifiable Occupations Scheme (NOS) and focuses on providing 
timely and relevant information which might indicate a public protection risk. 
Information is passed on at charge or arrest rather than on conviction, which may 
be some time after.”

3.4 Information at an early stage allows the Council to make a timely decision as to 
the fitness of a driver to continue to hold a licence or not. Of the 9 received so far 
this year, one has come direct from a driver for points on a licence and the others 
are for cautions given by Liverpool City Council for road traffic offences. More 
serious offences may lead to revocation or suspension of a licence, minor road 
traffic offences are dealt with by issuing a defect/advisory notice.

3.5 Allegation of conviction or caution. We have received two so far this year. One 
was to inform us that a driver has a conviction for assault which is currently being 
investigated.  The other concerned allegations of fraud and drug use. 
Investigations made offered no evidence to support this allegation.

3.6 Public body enquiry. There have been 31 received so far this year. These have 
included requests for information from Police, Immigration, HM Revenue & 
Customs and Department for Work & Pensions. The request usually enquires as 
to the type and length of licences held by drivers. Some enquiries concern vehicle 
owners.

Page 24

Agenda Item 4



3.7 Guide dog refusal. There have been two received so far. Investigations are 
ongoing but these normally result in driver suspensions.

3.8 Overcharging. Four complaints of overcharging have been received. Two 
complaints concerned a higher fare charged for the passengers when using 
different private hire operators. Tariffs used by private hire operators are not 
regulated but tariffs cards in vehicles are a condition of licence. One was for a 
hackney carriage that took a passengers on a longer than required journey (fare 
was returned) and the other was for allegation of incorrect change received which 
could not be substantiated.

3.9 Solicitor enquiry. Litigation involving drivers or details of vehicle ownership are 
the common reason for enquiries dealt with by S35 Data Protection Act requests. 
The Council charge £33.30 for these requests.

3.10 Age related vehicle checks. 43 have been conducted so far. The checks are 
conducted to ensure older vehicles are of a sufficient standard to be licensed in 
Sefton. The checks are required at 8 years old for ordinary cars or 11 years old for 
TX type (London Taxi) vehicles.

3.11 Lost property. It is a condition that lost property should be handed into the 
Police. Complaints generally involve difficulty or time taken to return items left 
behind in vehicles that have not been left in a police station.

3.12 Driver conduct or appearance. This generates the highest number of complaints 
and 65 have been received since April.  Abusive behaviour and offensive 
language are the most common. Usually the driver involved is invited to attend a 
meeting to discuss the allegations. If it is warranted they receive a warning or 
suspension, the outcome being dependent on evidence available. Smoking in 
vehicles remains a common complaint for which fixed penalties can be issued. 
Threatening behaviour is referred to the Police. 

3.13 Driving style. 20 have been received. These typically relate to passengers having 
concerns about the manner in which a vehicle is driven. A series of complaints of 
this nature against the same driver will give cause for concern. All passengers are 
advised to refer their complaints to the Police if it involves dangerous or reckless 
driving.

3.14 Unlicensed activity. 8 complaints. It usually involves an allegation of Sefton 
licensed private hire vehicles ‘plying for hire’ outside of Sefton. 

3.15 Document irregularity. 26 have been dealt with this year. These relate to 
outstanding documents or failed requests to see documents. Persistent refusal to 
produce documents will result in revocation of licence.

3.16 Requests for advice. 29 have been received since April. These are simply 
requests for advice or information on a range of issues concerning conditions or 
licensing enquiries.

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



3.17 Miscellaneous. 18 in this category including complaints about seatbelts, testing 
stations, vehicle plates and defective lights. Officers can request a vehicle to 
attend for inspection in order to rectify.

4 Future Improvements

4.1 From analysing the data it is clear some types of enquires and complaints could 
have been allocated a more appropriate category (such as and age related check 
against a driver). Where complaints have been coded incorrectly this will be 
rectified. The coding of complaints in this manner is fairly new and officers will 
receive further training to improve the quality of the data and ensure a consistent 
approach to categorisation.

4.2 Feedback from members would be welcomed help develop the detail and 
frequency of these types of reports in the future.

Page 26

Agenda Item 4



Taxi Licensing Complaints & Enquiries April to August 2016

Row Labels Operator PH Driver PH Vehicle HC Driver HC Vehicle

Testing 

Station Total

Freedom of Information Request 1 1

Vehicle accident report 7 11 18

Official notification of conviction/caution 8 1 9

Allegation of conviction/caution 2 2

Public body enquiry 22 7 1 1 31

Guide dog refusal 2 2

Overcharging 1 2 1 4

Solicitor enquiry 3 3

Age related vehicle check 1 40 1 1 43

Lost property 6 6

Driver conduct/appearance 52 7 5 1 65

Driving style 15 2 3 20

Unlicensed activity 2 4 1 1 8

Document irregularity 24 2 26

Request for advice 1 16 9 1 2 29

Miscellaneous 2 2 7 5 2 18

Total 7 163 89 15 9 2 285

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LOST PROPERTY.

We believe lost property should have less regulatory control and be left to each business to 
work out practical solutions for their customers.

Police authorities seem to change the rules by the minute as to what type of property they 
will take, when and where. It is often impractical for a driver to return property within 48 
hours in any event as he may not discover the item until he is on holiday.

Upon discovery it is unfair for a driver to be expected to foot the bill for returning items for 
free to somebody who through their own negligence left the vehicle without their goods.

It should be up to the customers to ensure they have taken all their goods with them… not 
the driver.

Ideally, the handbook should suggest that lost property should be handled in accordance 
with each operators own protocols.  That way we could arrange a mutually agreeable 
timeframe / cost for the return of any found property, without the council needing any 
involvement at all.

At the end of the day, this doesn’t have anything to do with providing a taxi service… it’s 
about returning lost goods AFTER the service provision has already been completed.  

That should be down to each operator to develop their own policy commensurate with the 
current state of play with Merseyside Police.

Regards

Paul

Page 29

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Mark Toohey

Subject: FW: Agenda Items

In just 10 months Sefton MBC has lost 1,371 badge holders (see below graphs) 

 

Q1. What are the financial implications for such an unprecedented collapse in the number of fee paying 

licence holders? 

 

Q2. How will the Council rebalance its ring-fenced taxi licensing account? Will there be service cuts, 

licence fee hikes or perhaps a mixture of both? 

 

Q3. In previous years neighbouring authorities have borne the responsibility for ensuring the safety of 

Sefton licensed drivers and vehicles working within their areas. With the roles now reversed what strategy 

does Sefton have in place for ensuring the safety of Sefton residents now utilising thousands of 'out of town' 

drivers and vehicles? 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 12



2

 
 

Page 32

Agenda Item 12



3

 
 
 

Regards 

 

 

Paul McLaughlin 

Company Secretary 

Page 33

Agenda Item 12



4

DELTA MERSEYSIDE LTD 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 12



1

Taxi Forward Plan Background Paper

INTRODUCTION:

This background paper aims to set out the current situation and gives a background 
overview to the taxi sector in the Liverpool City Region and its economic importance 
to the local economy. It also identifies key issues and opportunities for the sector.

This will then inform an action plan / work programme for the Taxi Group to take 
forward in the future. In light of this a governance and membership review of the 
group will be undertaken in line with similar reviews being done for other transport 
groups in the Liverpool City Region to ensure that they are fit for purpose.

BACKGROUND:

The Liverpool City Region is home to a vibrant and diverse taxi and private hire 
industry with around 2,509 Hackneys and around 7,955 Private Hire Vehicles 
licensed across the region. Licensing and regulation of the sector is the responsibility 
of the six Councils as the Licensing Authorities. Liverpool City houses England's 
largest hackney carriage fleet in a city outside London and the city is also home to 
some of the world’s largest private hire operators. Some of the large taxi operators in 
the Liverpool City Region include Delta Taxis, Uber, Acorn Taxis and Britannia Taxis.

Taxis are a key element of the transport network in the Liverpool City Region and 
provide vital services when other public transport (buses, trains and ferries) are less 
frequent or not in operation. They also play a key role in supporting key sectors such 
as the night time economy, tourism and access to jobs, education, leisure, and 
health facilities. They also provide a transport offer to people living with disabilities 
who may otherwise be isolated. All hackney carriages in the Liverpool city region are 
wheel chair accessible and all hackney drivers and private hire drivers are trained in 
disability awareness as part of their VRQ/NVQ requirement. 

They also support connectivity between Liverpool John Lennon Airport and Liverpool 
City Region and provide vital services to support early morning and late night staff 
and passenger movements. 

The table below summarises the vehicle numbers in the taxi sector:

Table 1
Hackney Carriage Vehicles: Private Hire Vehicles:

Liverpool City Council 1,426 2,100
Sefton Council 271 3,153
Knowsley Council 235 1,109
St Helens Council 62 515
Wirral Council 246 985
Halton Borough Council 269 93

Page 35

Agenda Item 13



2

Liverpool City Region: 2,509 7,955

The table below summarises the average fleet ages in the taxi sector:

Table 2
Hackney Carriage Vehicles: Private Hire Vehicles:

Liverpool City Council 8-10 years old 6-8 years old
Sefton Council 8.92 years old 5.88 years old
Knowsley Council Unknown Unknown
St Helens Council Unknown Unknown
Wirral Council 10 years old 5 years old
Halton Borough Council 4-5 years old 4-5 years old

Government is keen to encourage transport to transition towards low carbon, low 
emission and alternative fuelled vehicles. This includes electric, hybrid and other 
alternative fuels so basically anything that isn’t petrol or diesel powered. 

The table below gives an indication as to the numbers of alternative fuelled Hackney 
and Private Hire vehicles across the Liverpool City Region. 

Table 3
Hackney Carriage Vehicles: Private Hire Vehicles:

Liverpool City Council None 15-20 alternative fuelled 
vehicles 

Sefton Council Unknown Unknown 
Knowsley Council None 2 electric vehicles 
St Helens Council Unknown Unknown 
Wirral Council None 32 alternative fuelled 

vehicles including:

12 hybrid
13 electric
7 dual LPG / Petrol

Halton Borough Council None 2 hybrid vehicles 

Liverpool City Region: Unknown 56 alternative fuelled 

For the Hackney Carriages, the six Councils designate taxi ranks across the 
Liverpool City Region from which they are able to rank up. The map on the next 
page indicates current taxi rank locations across the Liverpool City Region. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 13



3

These locations are regularly reviewed by the Councils to ensure that they serve key 
economic locations, transport hubs, leisure and retail destinations, health facilities 
etc. and as new developments come into place across the region.

INSERT MAP OF TAXI RANKS HERE

ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE: 

The taxi and private hire industry in the Liverpool City Region plays a vital role in the 
transport network and local economy supporting key sectors such as the night time 
economy and tourism as well as access to jobs, education and health etc.

However there is little information in the way of a robust evidence base to quantify 
the role of the taxi sector in the local economy in terms of jobs, usage and economic 
impact. So there is a need for detailed research to be commissioned in this area. 

Integrated Transport:

The transport policy framework for the Liverpool City Region is set by the 
Merseyside and Halton Local Transport Plans and the LCR Transport Plan for 
Growth. The taxi and private hire sector plays a pivotal role in connecting those who 
live in less well served areas into the public transport system (buses, trains and 
ferries). By plugging the first mile or last mile gaps, the taxi and private hire sector 
can complement other modes of transport and help increase public transport usage. 

Taxis and private hire are also frequently the first impression and gateway to the city 
region for visitors arriving at key transport gateways such as the Ferry Terminals, 
Cruise Terminal, Rail Stations, Bus Stations and Liverpool John Lennon Airport. 

Night Time Economy:

The taxi and private hire sector is of significant importance to the night time economy 
in the Liverpool City Region, often being the only mode available when other public 
transport options cease operating. Given the strength of the Liverpool City Region’s 
night time economy and the contribution this makes to the local economy, the role of 
taxis and private hire is of great importance and is vital to support the attractiveness 
of the city region’s leisure and tourism offer to domestic and international visitors.

Tourism: 

A safe, reliable and high quality offer from the taxi and private hire sector is vital to a 
thriving tourism and business travel sector. The Liverpool City Region has long been 
an attractive tourism destination both for people visiting the city region from within 
the UK and for international visitors from around the world. 

With the recent addition of the ACC Liverpool (Arena, Convention and Exhibition 
Centre) on the waterfront this is increasing the number of business travellers visiting 
the city region for high profile conferences and other events. The city region has 
ambitious plans to become the number one business travel destination by moving up 
the ICCA (International Congress and Convention Association) rankings, not only at 

Page 37

Agenda Item 13



4

a UK level but in terms of its international standing globally. The Liverpool 
Convention Bureau is working with ACC Liverpool as well as other venues across 
the city region to attract more high profile international events to the area thereby 
bringing economic benefits to the local economy and boosting the ICCA ranking. 

The Liverpool City Region is also a popular tourism destination for domestic visitors 
on short breaks, stag and hen parties, large cultural events, sporting events (such as 
the Grand National, football, rugby, golf, etc) or for business activities. 

2030 VISION:

To be completed. 

KEY ISSUES:

Fragmented Regulatory Framework:

Regulation of the taxi and private hire sector is important to ensure that the industry 
is trusted, provides high standards of customer service, and meets the needs of the 
local community. However regulation must be proportionate and well targeted. Best 
practice guidelines used by Government for new regulations state that they must 
include an assessment of whether any interventions are justified by specific and 
legislative policy objectives. Once objectives are established then an assessment 
should consider the proportionality of each proposed condition against the objective, 
including whether the benefits outweigh the costs or impacts. Similar principles 
arguably should apply to regulation of taxis and private hire by local authorities. 

Local authority regulation of the taxi and private hire sector should be focussed, 
wherever possible, on stimulating competition and encouraging innovation. Greater 
competition encourages all operators in the sector to raise their game which in turn 
raises standards across the sector to the benefit of both passengers and drivers. 
Regulation should be customer focussed and promote choice and innovation. It 
should be technology and process agnostic and welcome efficiencies that 
technology can deliver, without compromising customer service and safety 
standards. However in the Liverpool City Region regulation of the taxi and private 
hire sector is undertaken by the 6 local authorities resulting in different outcomes and 
standards and a fragmented regulatory framework across the city region.

Consequently there is significant scope for greater harmonisation of the regulatory 
framework across the Liverpool City Region taking into account best practice 
principles. There is a need for greater information sharing across local authorities 
and greater sharing of enforcement powers and responsibilities. If necessary there 
may be a need to move in the longer term towards a city region licensing model 
similar to the London model where Transport for London is the licensing authority.

Unnecessarily High Barriers to Entry for New Drivers:

Existing taxi licensing standards in the Liverpool City Region are outdated in some 
respects and present unnecessarily high barriers to entry for new drivers. Yet there 

Page 38

Agenda Item 13



5

is little evidence and data to show that these requirements actually enhance 
customer service and safety standards. For example it takes approx. 3 months from 
selecting new driver to get them behind a wheel. One of the reasons it takes so long 
to get behind the wheel is the amount of time the criminal records check takes which 
can be 6 weeks plus as well as the topographical Knowledge Test. However 
widespread use of GPS and sat-nav technology arguably has made the Knowledge 
Test obsolete. Some authorities have already moved to a more progressive 
Essential Skills Assessment, focussed on the practical skills a driver will need to be 
successful in the taxi and private hire sector and provide a high level of customer 
service to their passengers. Yet others retain the Knowledge Test. The cost of the 
Vocationally Related Qualification (VRQ) can also be an issue  for new entrants if 
they don’t come from an unemployed background.  The cost of completing a medical 
also can be high, with GPs able to set their own charges for this service. So there 
needs to be more consistency to entry requirements for new drivers to the taxi and 
private hire sector. 

There is concern in the taxi industry that retention of these perceived high barriers to 
entry to the taxi and private hire sector is likely to exclude those who may benefit 
most from the flexible economic opportunities the industry can offer – such as the 
unemployed, women, those with carer responsibilities, students, semi-retired etc.

Integrated Transport:

There is concern from some parts of the taxi and private hire sector that their role in 
integrated transport is not sufficiently recognised and that they are consequently 
hindered from realising their full potential in integrated transport. There is insufficient 
integration between taxis and other public transport and ticketing for example. 

Technological Developments:

The transport industry in recent years has been experiencing significant 
technological change and the taxi and private hire sector is not immune to this. This 
is also changing customer expectations of public transport and how they want to 
access it. Traditional paper tickets and cash payment systems are rapidly being 
superseded by smartcards, contactless payment, account based payment, apps, etc. 
Increasingly there is also a need for on board free wi-fi, recharging sockets, etc. 

This has major implications for ticketing, vehicles and the way transport operators 
interact and engage with their customers. Uber is an app based taxi operator and 
while initially controversial has proved innovative and very customer friendly. But this 
presents challenges for other taxi and private hire operators to respond to these 
technological changes and higher customer expectations to remain competitive.

KEY OPPORTUNITIES:

Customer Service:

Customer service is really important for the taxi sector in the Liverpool City Region 
as they are frequently the first impression visitors may have of the city region.

Page 39

Agenda Item 13



6

Uber is an example of innovation in this regard. They operate a two-way five star 
rating system whereby passengers have the opportunity to rate drivers at the end of 
every journey (and vice versa, drivers have the opportunity to rate passengers). 
Processes are in place to monitor these ratings and the level of service that is 
provided to customers. Customers who provide a high rating (5 stars) or a low rating 
(3 stars or lower) are prompted to provide further information on what was behind the 
good or bad service such as professionalism, driving, route taken, service, quality of 
vehicle etc. This feedback is monitored and shared with drivers where appropriate. 

Customer service is also important for the Hackney trade as “black cabs” are the 
iconic taxi for London and other major cities in the UK and these vehicles are 
renowned around the world as an identifiable symbol of the UK. To match this status 
as a British icon they arguably need to provide world class customer service.

Also with the introduction of autonomous driverless vehicles being a possibility in the 
future, personalised customer service may become a competitive advantage 
compared with driverless vehicles e.g.  someone to carry the bags….help with hotel 
check ins, point out places of interest etc…

Other modes of public transport have Customer Charters in place but the taxi sector 
doesn’t so this is something which needs to be explored for the city region.

Technological Developments:

Technological change while a challenge from some perspectives, if embraced and 
used effectively can become an advantage and asset. There are two main areas of 
technological change that may affect the taxi and private hire sector. 

1. Changing payment systems with cash being superseded over time with 
smartcards, contactless payment, account based payment, apps, etc.

2. Autonomous driverless vehicles 

Technology can be used to make the taxi and private hire sector more accessible, 
affordable, customer friendly, reliable and safer for a wider market. Efficient and 
innovative pairing of passengers with the closest available driver via an app can 
provide greater levels of accessibility and reliability for passengers. They can book 
their ride at a touch of a button, and then can track the progress of the driver real 
time as they arrive at the requested pick up point. Dispatching trips to the nearest 
available driver helps maximise the efficiency and usage of the platform and 
vehicles. This benefits both drivers and passengers, keeping the time to pick up as 
short as possible and minimising the amount of “dead mileage” and inefficient use of 
driver and vehicles. Technology can improve safety through a number of features 
including the ability of the passenger to know their driver in advance (through sharing 
of driver name, photograph and vehicle details), phone number anonymisation 
allows the passenger to talk to the driver (and vice versa) if required in advance of 
pick up, and the fact that the entire trip can be tracked on a map via GPS – which 
passengers can share with family and friends if needed. The cashless nature of 
payment via app is also a major safety advantage for both driver and passenger.

Page 40

Agenda Item 13



7

Technology can allow enhanced innovation in customer service. In app support can 
transform the level of customer support provided. This may include options such as 
reporting lost property, fare and route issues, accidents or issues with a service, 
support requests then can be effectively triaged and directed to the most appropriate 
support team for attention. All communications can be recorded and tracked which 
provides a clear audit trail for other partners such as local authorities and police etc.

Key features and innovations that could become the norm for the taxi and private 
hire sector in future if mainstreamed may include the following:

 Real time links between document compliance (insurance, driver licence etc) 
and ability for drivers to go on line via apps

 Cashless transactions via contactless payment, account based payment, 
apps, etc can help improve security for both driver and passenger.

 Ability for passengers to monitor vehicle arrival in real time via apps and wait 
in a safe place until the vehicle arrives

 Sharing of driver photo, name and vehicle details when vehicle is enroute
 Ability for passenger and driver to talk to each other one-to-one without 

exposing either party’s personal contact details
 Tracking of all trips via GPS
 Ability of passengers to share their route and estimated arrival time in real 

time with friends or family
 Two-way customer service rating system of both driver and passenger.

The government is strongly supporting research, development and demonstration of 
connected and autonomous vehicles, such as driverless cars.

Connected and autonomous vehicles incorporate a range of different technologies, 
facilitating the safe, efficient movement of people and goods. This will help to 
improve mobility and productivity, and offer an alternative to driving.

Increasing levels of connectivity will allow vehicles to communicate with their 
surrounding environment (including the infrastructure and other vehicles). This would 
provide valuable information for the driver about road, traffic, and weather conditions, 
and on routing options.

Vehicles with increasing levels of automation will use information from on-board 
sensors and systems so they can understand their global position and local 
environment. This would allow them to operate with little or no human input (ie be 
driverless) for some, or all, of the journey.

The Government has established a new joint policy unit – the Centre for Connected 
and Autonomous Vehicles (CCAV) – to help ensure that the UK remains a world 
leader in developing and testing connected and autonomous vehicles. 

If these demonstrations and trials of autonomous vehicles are successful it is 
possible at in the future they could become mainstreamed and if so there are likely to 
be major impacts on public transport and the taxi / private hire sectors. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 13



8

Low Carbon Agenda:

The Government has established a joint policy unit - The Office for Low Emission 
Vehicles (OLEV) – to support the early market for ultra-low emission vehicles 
(ULEV). They are helping to position the UK at the global forefront of ULEV 
development, manufacture and use. This will contribute to economic growth and will 
help reduce greenhouse gas emissions and air pollution on our roads. This includes 
support for electric, hybrid, hydrogen and other alternatively fuelled vehicles. 

Air quality has risen up the national agenda in recent years. High nitrogen dioxide 
(NO2) levels have been linked to respiratory problems and premature death, as have 
emissions of particulate matter (PM). European legislation set down limits for these 
pollutants, to be achieved in member states by 2010. These limits are mirrored in the 
national air quality objectives. In the context of rising concern around the health 
impacts of air pollution, the European Commission announced in 2014 that it will be 
pursuing legal action against the UK government for failing to meet agreed health 
limits for nitrogen dioxide (NO2). Failure to comply with these targets may result in 
the UK having to pay very large fines which under Localism legislation may be 
devolved to local authorities to pay. So there could be major financial consequences. 
In April 2015 a UK Supreme Court ruling found the UK in breach of EU standards on 
toxic nitrogen dioxide levels and tasked the Government with drawing up an air 
quality plan this year which properly addresses the ongoing breaches of EU limits on 
air pollutants and provides a comprehensive plan to clean up our air.

Air quality is an increasing concern in major cities across the UK. Consequently the 
Government has asked for Clean Air Zones to be introduced in Birmingham, Leeds, 
Nottingham, Derby and Southampton by 2020. These Zones will not affect private 
car owners, but will see the most polluting vehicles, like old buses, taxis, coaches 
and lorries, discouraged from entering the zone through charges.

The Liverpool City Region (LCR) has declared twelve Air Quality Management Areas 
(AQMAs) where national air quality objectives and European limits for NO2 and/or 
particulate matter (PM10) are currently being exceeded, and Air Quality Action Plans 
have been put in place to reduce levels of these pollutants but additional measures 
may also be needed. The additional devolution that was announced in March 2016 
enhancing the original Liverpool City Region Devolution Deal (Nov 2015) tasks the 
city region with undertaking a feasibility study to explore a Clean Air Zone. It states:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/liverpool-devolution-deal 

“The government will work with the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority to 
explore ways in which the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Mayor can be 
enabled to implement Clean Air Zones in the Combined Authority area. This will help 
achieve Air Quality Plan objectives at both the national and local level.”

As a result the role of taxis and private hire will be invaluable as part of the transition 
towards alternative fuelled vehicles to improve air quality in the city region. The 
Liverpool City Region will need to explore opportunities for funding bids to 
Government on behalf of the taxi and private hire sector to support this transition.

Page 42

Agenda Item 13

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/liverpool-devolution-deal


9

Integrated Transport and “Mobility as a Service”:

Taxis and private hire have an important role to play as part of the integrated 
transport network complementing public transport such as buses, trains and ferries 
etc. However their role has been undervalued in recent years. 

Taxis and private hire can help public transport reach underserved areas of the city 
region by helping fill first mile / last mile gaps in provision as affordably as possible. 
They can also help provide extra support to complement public transport options at 
specific periods of high demand when public transport is under strain such as during 
high profile events or at times of major disruption. 

However there are issues to overcome to better link taxi and private hire with wider 
public transport in terms of payment systems and ticketing. 

Recently the Transport Systems Catapult published a report on how “Mobility as a 
Service” could be taken forward by the Government. 

https://ts.catapult.org.uk/intelligent-mobility/im-resources/maasreport/ 

It outlines two scenarios for delivery of “Mobility as a Service”. 

1. MaaS providers offer consumers a service focussed on car transport such as 
taxi, car sharing and rid sharing. 
2. MaaS providers offer a multimodal bundle of services. 

It defines MaaS as “using a digital interface to source and manage the provision of a 
transport related service which meets the mobility requirements of a customer”. 

Consumers would typically access such a service via their smartphones. The core 
innovation in MaaS is the ability of the MaaS provider to aggregate transport 
operator services into a bundle using a digital platform. It is arguably “integrated 
transport” in some respects delivered via new technology platforms.

MaaS could have a number of consequences such as impacts on ticketing, car 
ownership, taxi / private hire and public transport usage. It may also result in a move 
towards more car based transport options rather than conventional public transport 
such as buses, trains and trams. But it could increase travel. It could also affect land 
use planning and need for car parks. So role of organisations in the public sector to 
integrate transport could become vital as MaaS develops. What Uber is doing at the 
moment is perhaps the beginning of MaaS, Hackney taxis and buses already 
struggling with competition from apps like Uber. 

Rise of autonomous driverless vehicles in the future could also impact this as well. 
Singapore is introducing driverless taxis. Uber are working with Volvo to introduce 
driverless taxis in Pittsburgh in the USA. 

Main players in MaaS are likely to be automotive manufacturers and public transport 
operators but also new entrants such as telecoms, technology, retail, media 

Page 43

Agenda Item 13

https://ts.catapult.org.uk/intelligent-mobility/im-resources/maasreport/


10

organisations. So how it can be managed for the common public good rather than 
resulting in private sector monopolies is a major challenge. 

ACTIONS:

Evidence Base:

1. Undertake a study to research and quantify taxi and private hire role, 
usage and economic impact across the Liverpool City Region. This will 
then provide a stronger baseline and evidence base to start from to inform 
the future development of the taxi and private hire sector.

Regulatory Framework:

2. Explore ways to harmonise taxi regulation across the Liverpool City 
Region and review the Knowledge Tests to better encourage competition 
and innovation and reduce upfront costs for new entrants to taxis.

3. Explore options through the licensing regime to reduce the average fleet 
age for taxis and private hire across the Liverpool City Region to 5 years.

4. Explore options to ensure that all taxi and private hire drivers are paid the 
national living wage and have adequate working conditions.

Customer Service and Integrated Transport:

5. Agree a Liverpool City Region Taxi Customer Charter and jointly adopt it 
across the six Local Authorities.

6. Work across the city region with learning providers and other partners to 
ensure that the taxi and private hire sector are adequately trained to World 
Host customer service standards or equivalent. This would include 
disability awareness training, conflict management and awareness of the 
regulatory framework 

7. Explore an internal pilot within Merseytravel of how to integrate taxis into 
public transport ticketing (e.g. set up a Merseytravel business account with 
Uber on a trial basis)

8. Explore a pilot somewhere in the Liverpool City Region on how taxis can 
be integrated into public transport e.g. St Helens social services trial, 
Florida public transport trial with Uber, etc

9. Investigate innovative payment systems such as smartcard, pay as you 
go, contactless, m-ticketing, e-tickets, apps, accounts, etc as part of 
Walrus roll out and TfN smart ticketing work.

10. Investigate opportunities for the Liverpool City Region to become a leader 
in “Mobility as a Service” encompassing all modes of transport including 
buses, trains, ferries, taxis, car clubs, car sharing, cycle hire, etc.

11. Investigate opportunities for the Liverpool City Region to become a leader 
in autonomous and driverless vehicles.

Low Carbon Agenda:

12. Explore an electric vehicle pilot with Uber and other taxi operators.

Page 44

Agenda Item 13



11

13. Monitor potential implications for the taxi sector in regard to possible 
introduction of a Clean Air Zone in the Liverpool City Region.

14. Explore funding bids by the city region to support introduction of electric, 
hybrid and alternative fuelled taxi and private hire vehicles.

Governance:

15. Agree a clear action plan and work programme for the group. 
16. Review the name, terms of reference and governance structure.
17. Review representation on the Taxi Group from the taxi trade across each 

of the Districts in the Liverpool City Region. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Liverpool City Region Taxi Customer Charter
Every taxi passenger has an expectation of a safe, pleasant and reliable journey. 
This Customer Charter outlines the service you can expect to receive when travelling 
in a taxi in the Liverpool City Region. It takes into account best practice in customer 
charters – outlining safety and service standards for passengers, drivers and 
booking service operators, and the responsibilities of each party in their interactions. 

This document has been written by the Liverpool City Region Taxi Quality 
Partnership comprising representatives from Merseytravel, the six Councils and the 
taxi and private hire operators. The Taxi Quality Partnership aims to work with the 
taxi industry in the Liverpool City Region to create a more flexible, professional, 
responsive and innovative industry that provides better service, choice and safety for 
customers while also supporting the health and wellbeing of taxi drivers.

This Customer Charter is not a set of rules or regulations but rather a set of mutual 
obligations or behaviours and focusses on the interaction between the taxi driver and 
passenger. It aims to complement the licensing conditions set out by each of the six 
Councils. Every driver and passenger has the right to a safe and pleasant journey.

1. YOUR SAFETY

Your safety is a priority. In the Liverpool City Region, taxi drivers will provide 
you with a safe and comfortable journey. Your taxi will be clean and well 
maintained. The driver will be appropriately dressed and they will drive 
carefully obeying all road and traffic laws. 

Information for taxi passengers:

 Wear your seatbelt, check that infants are suitably secured using a suitable 
child seat  (it’s the law, unless you have an exemption certificate) and don’t 
exceed the number of passengers the taxi is permitted to carry

 Don’t ask the driver to carry infants who are unaccompanied by an adult with 
parental responsibility 

 Don’t distract the driver or touch any of the taxi equipment or controls
 Make sure you have the means to pay the displayed fare as you are entering 

into a contract with the taxi or private hire provider once your journey has 
started. It is a legal requirement to pay your fare. If you don’t you may face 
prosecution, financial penalties and gain a criminal record 

 Don’t ask the driver to speed or take risks on the road (including when 
dropping you off at your destination)

 Security cameras operate in taxis in the Liverpool City Region for passenger 
and driver safety

 You can check a taxi driver’s accreditation and other taxi information which 
should be displayed in the vehicle for your convenience  with the relevant 
Council licensing department

Page 47

Agenda Item 13



2

2. YOUR SERVICE

Providing good, consistent customer service is important. All taxi drivers in 
the Liverpool City Region are determined to provide you with a high level of 
service that is professional, courteous, welcoming and responsive.

Information for taxi passengers:

 At the start of the trip indicate where you would like to go, your preferred route 
and how you would like to pay

 Pay your fare and any applicable tolls, fees or charges – drivers can request 
you to pay an estimate of the fare at any time

 You can request a quiet ride or ask to have the music or air conditioning / 
heating adjusted for your comfort and wellbeing

 Don’t eat or drink in the taxi; smoking or consuming any alcohol in the vehicle 
is an offence

 Behave appropriately in the taxi and towards your driver – you can be refused 
travel or have your trip terminated if you or anyone in your travelling party is 
violent, noisy, misbehaving, filthy or offensive

Your taxi driver will show their commitment to good service by:

 Being punctual, helping you with your luggage or other items and (if 
appropriate) getting into or out of the taxi

 Accepting all fares (including short trips) and explaining to you any incurred 
costs e.g. tolls, booking / airport fees, etc.

 Taking you on the most direct route or the route you prefer
 Ensuring that they (and their vehicle) are neat, clean and well presented at all 

times
 Not talking on the phone while driving you to your destination
 All drivers have a live DBS (disclosure & baring service) report so that you 

can feel safe 
 Being knowledgeable about geographic destinations, points of interest, tourist 

attractions and major events in the Liverpool City Region
 Having undergone nationally recognised customer service training which will 

include safeguarding, conflict management, recognising rules and regulations 
etc.  

3. YOUR ACCESSIBILITY

Improving taxi travel for people with mobility issues is a major focus of the 
industry. In the Liverpool City Region, passengers with a wheelchair, 
assistance animals (or with other needs) will be treated with respect and 
dignity and given professional, safe, reliable and comfortable transport.

Page 48

Agenda Item 13



3

Your taxi driver will support your participation in community life by:

 Being punctual and getting you safely and comfortably to your destination
 Taking extra care when assisting you into or out of the vehicle and being 

aware of your personal space
 Driving smoothly and avoiding speed humps, turning sharply or braking 

suddenly 
 Being familiar with assistance animals and allowing these to travel with you 

(their handler) unless they have a medical reason not to. This medical reason 
will come in the form of a displayed exemption certificate 

 Ensure your mobility aids and other equipment or items are safely secured

4. YOUR SHARED RESPONSIBILITIES 

Unsafe or inappropriate behaviour by you or your taxi driver is unacceptable. 
This conduct may put either of you at risk and could offend, harm or result in 
the matter being reported to the police or other actions being taken.

Mutual obligations and behaviours of taxi passengers and drivers:

 Treat each other with respect and dignity
 Comply with the law
 Don’t engage in any discriminatory behaviour 

Passenger Rights and Responsibilities:
Taxi customers in the Liverpool City Region have a right to:

 A driver who is licenced and accredited
 See the taxi driver’s photo identification on display
 Travel a short distance – it is an offence for drivers to refuse a passenger 

based on a short fare
 Choose the preferred route
 See the metered fare
 Travel in a clean and well maintained taxi
 Having the air conditioning or radio adjusted
 Request that the driver not talk on the phone if this happens during your trip
 Be accompanied by an assistance animal 
 Request reasonable assistance getting into or out of the taxi (if required) and 

with the loading / unloading of luggage and other personal items
 Refuse a multiple hiring
 Pay via an electronic payment terminal using a valid credit / debit card (as 

displayed in the taxi) or via a contactless payment
 Be given a receipt or tax invoice for their trip

Page 49

Agenda Item 13



4

Taxi customers in the Liverpool City Region have a responsibility to:

 Pay the correct fare, including any tolls or authorised fees
 Wear a seat belt
 Not distract the driver or touch any of the taxi equipment or controls
 Not request the driver to exceed the number of passengers permitted to be 

carried in the taxi
 Recognise that there will be financial consequences if you soil the taxi in any 

way. Vomiting etc.   
 Not eat or drink in the taxi; smoking or consuming any alcohol in the vehicle is 

an offence
 Behave appropriately in the taxi – your trip can be terminated if you are 

violent, noisy, misbehaving, filthy or offensive

Driver Rights and Responsibilities:
Taxi drivers in the Liverpool City Region have a right to:

 Ask for proof of ability to pay or request a deposit up to the estimated fare (at 
any time)

 Refuse to take passengers or terminate a hiring if they are violent, noisy, 
misbehaving, filthy or offensive

Taxi drivers in the Liverpool City Region have a responsibility to:

 Be punctual, courteous, welcoming and helpful at all times
 Know and obey the road rules and traffic laws
 Not refuse a fare (other than for the reasons outlined above)
 Know the major routes and destinations
 Understand, read and speak English adequately to an acceptable standard  
 Take the most direct and practical route
 Be neat, clean, tidy and well presented at all times 
 Provide the passenger with a receipt or tax invoice when requested
 Not refuse to take a passenger with an assistance animal except where they 

have a medical reason not to (medical exception certificate will be displayed)
 Securely restrain approved wheelchairs or safely store mobility aids and other 

equipment and luggage
 Assist passengers where reasonable and be understanding of people with a 

disability or mobility difficulties

Feedback, Complaints and Further Information:
For further information about the Liverpool City Region Taxi Customer Charter 
please contact any of the six Councils and their licensing departments.

To provide feedback or make a complaint about taxi services in the Liverpool City 
Region please contact the taxi operator you travelled with or if further assistance is 
required then contact the relevant Council licensing department.

Page 50

Agenda Item 13



5

LIVERPOOL CITY COUNCIL

Licensing and Regulatory Services
Liverpool City Council
Municipal Buildings
Dale Street
Liverpool, L2 2DH
Tel: 0151 233 3015
Website: http://liverpool.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/business-and-street-
trading-licences/taxi-licences/ 

SEFTON COUNCIL

Trading Standards & Licensing 
Sefton Council
Ist Floor, Magdalen House
30 Trinity Road
Bootle L20 3NJ
Tel: 0345 140 0845
Website: http://www.sefton.gov.uk/business/licensing-registration/taxi-licensing.aspx 

KNOWSLEY COUNCIL

Licensing Section
Knowsley Council
2nd Floor, Yorkon Building
Archway Road
Huyton, L36 9FB
Telephone: 0151 443 2300
Email: licensing@knowsley.gov.uk
Website: http://www.knowsley.gov.uk/business/apply-for-a-licence/business-and-
street-trading/taxi-and-private-hire-driver-licences 

ST HELENS COUNCIL

Taxi Licensing 
St Helens Council
Contact centre
Wesley House
Corporation Street
St. Helens WA10 1HF
Tel: 01744 676770
Email: taxilicensing@sthelens.gov.uk 
Website: https://www.sthelens.gov.uk/business/licensing/taxis/ 

Page 51

Agenda Item 13

http://liverpool.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/business-and-street-trading-licences/taxi-licences/
http://liverpool.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/business-and-street-trading-licences/taxi-licences/
http://www.sefton.gov.uk/business/licensing-registration/taxi-licensing.aspx
mailto:licensing@knowsley.gov.uk
http://www.knowsley.gov.uk/business/apply-for-a-licence/business-and-street-trading/taxi-and-private-hire-driver-licences
http://www.knowsley.gov.uk/business/apply-for-a-licence/business-and-street-trading/taxi-and-private-hire-driver-licences
mailto:taxilicensing@sthelens.gov.uk
https://www.sthelens.gov.uk/business/licensing/taxis/


6

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

Taxi Licensing 
Wirral Council
Cheshire Lines Building
Canning Street
Birkenhead, Wirral
CH41 1ND
Tel: 0151 691 8043
Email: licensing@wirral.gov.uk
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/taxi-and-private-
hire 

HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Taxi Licensing 
Halton Borough Council 
4th Floor, Municipal Building
Kingsway, Widnes WA8 7QF
Tel: 0303 333 4300
Email: Legalservices@halton.gov.uk
Website: http://www4.halton.gov.uk/Pages/business/Licences/Taxis.aspx 

MERSEYTRAVEL

Merseytravel
PO Box 1976
Liverpool
L69 3HN
Tel: 0151 227 5181  
Website: www.merseytravel.gov.uk 

Page 52

Agenda Item 13

mailto:licensing@wirral.gov.uk
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/taxi-and-private-hire
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/taxi-and-private-hire
mailto:Legalservices@halton.gov.uk
http://www4.halton.gov.uk/Pages/business/Licences/Taxis.aspx
http://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/


To consider and adopt the Modern TfL conditions and requirements:

This is particularly necessary in relation to English Language testing; the TfL standard 
should be adopted henceforth by SMBC in respect of new applicants:

English language requirement

Start date: 1 October 2016 for new applicants and licensees renewing their licence.

All new applicants and existing private hire drivers renewing their licence who are not 
from a majority English speaking country will be required to meet a new English 
language requirement from 1 October 2016. Applicants will be required to present a 
valid English language certificate with a B1 level of English on the Common 
European Framework (CEFR) as part of their new or renewal licence application.

Anyone who does not have the appropriate level of English will not be granted a 
licence.

Further details related to this requirement will be published in summer 2016.

What this means for you:

You will not need to prove your knowledge of English if you are a citizen of
United Kingdom or one of the following countries: Antigua and Barbuda; Australia; 
The Bahamas; Barbados; Belize; Canada; Dominica; Grenada; Guyana; Jamaica; 
New Zealand; Republic of Ireland; St Kitts and Nevis; St Lucia; St Vincent and the 
Grenadines; Trinidad and Tobago; USA

Page 53

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank



House of Commons briefing paper, 10th August 2016.

What is a ‘taxi’? 

The term ‘taxi’ is in common usage across the country, but there can be differences 
in how that term is used. 

For example, in London the term ‘taxi’ is synonymous with the city’s black cabs 
(licensed as ‘hackney carriages’) and the term ‘minicab’ tends to be used to refer to 
private hire vehicles (essentially anything that is not a black cab). Outside of London 
the term ‘taxi’ is often used to refer to both hackney carriages and PHVs, although 
they are licensed differently. 

The term ‘taxi’ is relatively modern. It was first used in legislation in the Transport Act 
1980, where section 64(3) defines a taxi in the same terms as a ‘hackney carriage’. 
Most of the legislation and case law still refers to taxis as ‘hackney carriages’.

The Law Commission looked at the definition of ‘taxi’ in its May 2014 report. It 
concluded that the term ‘hackney carriage’ should be replaced in legislation with the 
word ‘taxi’, while the term ‘private hire vehicle’ should remain unchanged: 

We … recommend that the statutory language be changed to “taxi” for 
hackney carriages. The use of “hackney carriage” is an historic anomaly. 
“Private hire”, on the other hand, is a modern term which, although it may not 
receive much public usage, accurately describes the service it relates to. 
We recognise that there is a significant depth of feeling in relation to the use 
of the term “taxi”, in any form, by private hire firms. Given the growth of online 
marketing it seems than only an outright prohibition on these terms would be 
effective. We acknowledge that the term “private hire” is not well-known 
amongst the general public, and the term “minicab” is only used to any great 
extent in London. Yet if private hire vehicles are to be prohibited from using 
signage including the word “taxi” it appears inevitable that this restriction 
should also apply to advertising. It could be argued that allowing private hire 
firms to advertise as taxis might encourage the public to try to hail private hire 
vehicles. On the other hand, private hire vehicles should continue to be 
allowed to advertise as “cabs”.

Thus, for the purposes of this paper, and in line with the Law Commission’s 
recommendation, the term ‘taxi’ is used to refer to what are currently defined in 
legislation as ‘hackney carriages’.

Page 55

Agenda Item 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Labour Party Conference 2016

11,000 delegate conference at ACC Liverpool

Saturday 24 – Wednesday 28 September 2016

The Labour Party will hold its Annual Party Conference 2016 at ACC Liverpool, one of this year’s 

event calendar highlights. ACC Liverpool is home to BT Convention Centre, Echo Arena and 

Exhibition Centre Liverpool. The eyes of the world will be on the city during the entire week of 

the conference, with over 11,000 delegates attending including over 2,000 national and 

international press and media.

Delegates will require transport to and from the venue during this 5-day event and the city’s 

taxi drivers have an important role to play to ensure our visitors experience the warm welcome 

that Liverpool is renowned for. Outlined below are some key points of information that all taxi 

drivers will need to be aware of so that as far as possible you are able to maintain a business as 

usual approach with limited disruption.

Due to the size and high profile nature of the event, the standard operation of the venue and 

surrounding site has been altered in order to accommodate the vast operational and security 

requirements of this conference. During the event a ‘secure site’ will be in operation around the 

venue. 

The taxi rank on Kings Parade will be closed from 21st-28th September. During this period drop 

off and pick up points will instead be situated on Keel Wharf (between Loading Bay 2 and 

Staybridge Suites) and delegates can use the steps or the ramp leading up to the piazza. The 

disability drop-off point will be located on Monarch’s Quay.

The majority of delegates are expected to arrive in the city on Friday 23 September.  

Dates to be aware of: 

Saturday 24 September

10.00 Doors open

11.45 Leadership announcement

12.30 Women’s conference opens

17.00 Conference closes 

Page 57

Agenda Item 17



Sunday 25 September

11:00 Conference begins

17:30 Conference closes

Monday 26 September

09:30 Conference begins

16:00 Conference closes

Tuesday 27 September

09:30 Conference begins

16:00 Conference closes

Wednesday 28 September
10:30 Conference begins

16:00 Conference closes

Please note that the above timings refer to the main plenary events of the conference. There 
will also be a number of fringe meetings taking place during this period that may finish as late 
as 12:00am. 

For further information please contact Liverpool Convention Bureau on 0151 6002900.

Thank you in advance of your support.

Page 58

Agenda Item 17


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 L & R Reports
	FD 4312 - Taxing Licensing Complaint Data-l-f
	Table Taxi Complaints April to August 2016

	11 Lost Property
	12 Licence Numbers & Implications
	13 Taxi Quality Partnership
	Liverpool City Region Taxi Customer Charter

	14 Request to adopt TfL proposals
	15 Use of the word 'Taxi'
	17 Labour Party Conference

